An Introduction to Orthopaedics, Fractures and Joint Injuries, Rheumatology, Metabolic Bone Disease and Rehabilitation

Textbook of Disorders and Injuries of the Musculoskeletal System

Third Edition

1,360 Illustrations on 860 Figures 670 New References

Robert Bruce Salter

C.C., O. Ont., F.R.S.C., M.D., M.S. (Tor.), F.R.S.C., F.A.C.S., F.H.S.C. Hon, Dr. Med (Uppsala), Hon, D.Sc. (Memorial and Toronto) Hon, LL.D. (Dalhousie), Hon, D. Litt.S. (Wycliffe, Toronto) Hon, F.R.C.P.S. Glasg., Hon, F.R.C.S. Edin., Hon, F.C.S.S.A., S. Africa Hon, F.R.C.S. Eng., Hon, F.R.C.S., Aust., Hon, F.R.C.S. Ire., Hon, M.C.F.P.C.

University Professor Emeritus of the University of Toronto Professor and Chairman Emeritus of Orthopaedic Surgery, University of Toronto Faculty, Institute of Medical Science and School of Graduate Studies Member of the Center for Bioethies, University of Toronto Senior Orthopaedic Surgeon Emeritus, The Hospital for Sick Children, Toronto Honorary Consultant in Orthopaedic Surgery, The Hospital for Sick Children Senior Scientist Emeritus, Research Institute, The Hospital for Sick Children Consultant, The Orthopaedic and Arthritic Hospital, Toronto Laureate of the Canadian Medical Hall of Fame



Philadelphia • Baltimore • New York • London Buenos Aires • Hong Kong • Sydney • Tokyo

Contents

Foreword by Henry R. Cowell, M.D., Ph.D., vii Preface, ix About the Author, xi Acknowledgments, xiii

Section I Basic Musculoskeletal Science and Its Application

- 1 Introduction: The Past and the Present, 1
- Normal Structure and Function of Musculoskeletal Tissues, 7
- 3 Reactions of Musculoskeletal Tissues to Disorders and Injuries, 29
- 4 Some Important Pairs of Clinical Terms, 51
- 5 Diagnosis of Musculoskeletal Disorders and Injuries, 61
- 6 General Principles and Specific Methods of Musculoskeletal Treatment, 91

Section II Musculoskeletal Disorders—General and Specific

- 7 Common Normal Variations, 117
- 8 Congenital Abnormalities, 131
- 9 Generalized and Disseminated Disorders of Bone, 183
- 10 Inflammatory Disorders of Bones and Joints, 207
- 11 Degenerative Disorders of Joints and Related Tissues, 257
- 12 Neuromuscular Disorders, 303
- 13 Disorders of Epiphyses and Epiphyseal Growth, 339
- 14 Neoplasms of Musculoskeletal Tissues, 379

Section III Musculoskeletal Injuries

- 15 Fractures and Joint Injuries--General Features, 417
- 16 Specific Fractures and Joint Injuries in Children, 499
- 17 Specific Fractures and Joint Injuries in Adults, 561

Section IV Research

18 The Philosophy and Nature of Medical Research with One Example, 657

Index, 673

Contents

Section | Basic Musculoskeletal Science and Its Application

- 1 Introduction: The Past and the Present, 1 Brief Historical Background, 1 The Scope of Orthopaedics, 2 Current Trends in Clinical Conditions of the Musculoskeletal System, 3 Recent Advances, 3
- 2 Normal Structure and Function of Musculoskeletal Tissues, 7

Bones as Structures and Bone as an Organ, 7 Embryonic Development of Bones, 7

Bone Growth and Remodeling, 9

Growth in Length, 9

Growth in Width, 11 Remodeling of Bone, 11

Anatomy and Histology of Bones as Structures, 11

Anatomical Structure, 11

Blood Supply to Long Bones, 11

Histological Structure, 12

Biochemistry and Physiology of Bone as an Organ, 14

Biochemistry of Bone, 14

Calcium and Phosphorus Metabolism, 15

Joints and Articular Cartilage, 17

Classification of the Types of Joints, 17

Embryonic Development of Synovial Joints, 18

Anatomy and Histology of Synovial Joints, 18

Anatomical Structure, 18

Histological Structure of Articular Cartilage, 20

Bone and Cartilage: Similarities and Differences, 22

Structure and Functions of the Synovial Membrane, 22

Synovial Fluid, 22

Skeletal Muscles, 23

Anatomy and Histology of Skeletal Muscle, 23

Biochemistry and Physiology of Muscle, 25

Tendons and Ligaments, 26

3 Reactions of Musculoskeletal Tissues to Disorders and Injuries, 29

Bone, 29

Reactions of Bone, 29

Examples of Reactions of Living Bone, 31

Generalized Reactions of All Bone as an Organ, 31 Localized Reactions of Bone as a Structure, 31

Epiphyseal Plates, 33

Reactions of Epiphyseal Plates, 33

Examples of Reactions of Epiphyseal Plates, 33

Generalized Reactions of All Epiphyseal Plates, 33 Localized Reactions of an Epiphyseal Plate, 33

Synovial Joints, 35

Reactions of Articular Cartilage, 35

Reactions of Synovial Membrane, 39

Reactions of Joint Capsule and Ligaments, 39

Skeletal Muscle, 44

Reactions of Skeletal Muscle, 44

Disuse Atrophy, 44

Work Hypertrophy, 44

Ischemic Necrosis (See Chapter 15), 44

Contracture, 44

Regeneration, 44

Musculoskeletal Deformities, 45

Types of Bony Deformity, 45

Loss of Alignment, 45

Abnormal Length, 45

Bony Outgrowth, 45

Causes of Bony Deformity, 45

Congenital Abnormalities of Bony Development (See Chapter 8), 45

Fractures (See Chapters 15 to 17), 46

Disturbances of Epiphyseal Plate Growth (See Chapters 7, 8, 13, and 16), 46

Bending of Abnormally Soft Bone (See Chapter 9), 46

Overgrowth of Adult Bone (See Chapters 9 and 14), 46

Types of Joint Deformity, 46

Displacement of the Joint, 46

Excessive Mobility (Hypermobility) of the Joint, 46

Restricted Mobility of the Joint, 46

Causes of Joint Deformity, 46

Congenital Abnormalities of Joint Development (See Chapter 8), 46

Acquired Dislocations, 47

Mechanical Blocks, 47

Joint Adhesions, 47

Muscle Contractures, 48

Muscle Imbalance, 48

Fibrous Contractures of Fascia and Skin, 48

External Pressures, 48

Joint Deformities of Unknown Cause (Idiopathic), 48

4 Some Important Pairs of Clinical Terms, 51

Terms Describing Movements of Joints, 51

Active and Passive Movement, 51

Abduction and Adduction, 51

Flexion and Extension, 51

Dorsiflexion and Plantar (or Palmar) Flexion, 51

Eversion and Inversion, 51

Internal Rotation and External Rotation, 52

Pronation and Supination, 52

Terms Describing Deformities in Limbs, 54

Calcaneus and Equinus, 54

Cavus and Planus, 55

Internal Torsion and External Torsion, 55
Anteversion and Retroversion, 55
Angulation or Bowing Deformities, 56
Varus and Valgus, 56
Varus, 57
Valgus, 58
Clinical Measurement of Joint Motion and Deformity, 58

5 Diagnosis of Musculoskeletal Disorders and Injuries, 61

Methods of Obtaining Data (Clues)—The Investigation, 61

The Patient's Story (Clinical History), 61 Important Data in the Patient's History, 63

Physical Examination, 64 Looking (Inspection), 65

The Anatomical Position, 59

Feeling (Palpation), 66

Moving (Assessment of Joint Mation), 66

Listening (Auscultation), 66

Special Physical Tests, 67 Neurological Examination, 68

Diagnostic Imaging, 68

Plain (Conventional) Radiography, 69

Inspection of a Radiograph, 72

Scintigraphy, 77

Plain (Conventional) Tomography, 78

Computed Tomography, 78

Ultrasonography (Ultrasound), 81

Magnetic Resonance Imaging, 81

Laboratory Investigation, 83

Diagnostic Arthroscopy, 86

Antenatal Diagnosis, 86

Correlation of all Data (Clues), 88

Communication with your Patients About the Diagnosis, 89

6 General Principles and Specific Methods of Musculoskeletal Treatment, 91

General Principles of Treatment, 91

A Litany for Medical Practitioners, 93

General Forms and Specific Methods of Treatment, 93

Forms of Treatment, 93

Specific Methods of Treatment, 93

- 1) Psychological Considerations, 94
- 2) Therapeutic Drugs, 94
- 3) Orthopaedic Apparatus and Appliances, 95
- 4) Physical and Occupational Therapy (Fig. 6.8), 98
- 5) Surgical Manipulation, 99
- 6) Surgical Operations, 100
- 7) Electrical Stimulation of Fracture Healing, 110
- 8) Continuous Passive Motion, 111
- Radiation Therapy (Radiotherapy), 111

Rehabilitation—A Philosophy in Action, 113

Communication with your Patients About the Recommended Treatment, 114

The Doctor-Patient Relationship as Part of Treatment, 114

Section II Musculoskeletal Disorders—General and Specific

7 Common Normal Variations, 117

Common Normal Variations in Children, 118

Variations Caused by Hypermobility of Joints (Joint Laxity), 118

Flexible Flat Feet (Hypermobile Pes Planus), 118

Knock Knees (Genu Valgum), 120

Variations Caused by Torsional Deformities of Bones, 121

Toeing Out, 123

Toeing In, 123

Bow Legs (Genu Varum), 125

Normal Variations in Adults, 127

Normal Aging Process in the Musculoskeletal System, 127

8 Congenital Abnormalities, 131

General Features, 131

Definition and Variety, 131

Incidence, 131

Etiological Factors, 131

Genetic Defects, 131

Environmental Influences, 133

Combination of Genetic Defects and Environmental Influences, 133

Types of Congenital Musculoskeletal Abnormalities, 133

Localized Abnormalities, 133

Generalized Abnormalities, 134

Diagnosis of Congenital Abnormalities, 134

Antenatal Diagnosis, 134

Postnatal Diagnosis, 134

Principles and Methods of Treatment, 135

Localized Congenital Abnormalities of the Lower Limb, 135

The Foot, 135

Toe Deformities, 135

Metatarsus Primus Varus, 136

Metatarsus Adductus (Metatarsus Varus), 136

Clubfoot (Talipes Equinovarus), 138

Talipes Calcaneovalgus, 140

Congenital Plantar Flexed (Vertical) Talus, 140

Tarsal Coalition (Rigid Valgus Foot), 141

Accessory Tarsal Navicular, 142

The Long Bones, 142

Pseudarthrosis of the Tibia, 142

Hypoplasia of the Long Bones, 143

The Knee, 143

Dislocation of the Knee, 143

Dislocation of the Patella, 144

Discoid Lateral Meniscus, 144

The Hip, 144

Developmental Coxa Vara, 144

Dislocation and Subluxation of the Hip (Developmental Displacement of the Hip; Developmental Dysplasia of the Hip), 146

Amputations in the Lower Limb, 156

Hemihypertrophy, 158

Localized Congenital Abnormalities of the Upper Limb, 158

The Hand, 158

Trigger Thumb, 158

Webbing of the Fingers (Syndactyly), 159

xxi

The Forearm, 159

Hypoplasia of the Radius (Clubhand), 159

The Elbow, 160

Dislocation of the Head of the Radius, 160

Radioulnar Synostosis, 160

Hypoplasia of the Clavicles, 161

High Scapula (Sprengel's Deformity), 161

Amputations in the Upper Limb, 162

Localized Congenital Abnormalities of the Spine, 165

Spina Bifida, 165

Etiological Factors, 165

The Possible Prevention of Spina Bifida, 165

Pathology of Spina Bifida, 165

Spina Bifida Occulta, 165

Spina Bifida with Meningocele, 166

Spina Bifida with Meningomyelocele, 166

Spina Bifida with Myelocele (Rachischisis), 167

Clinical Course of the Neurological Deficit, 168

Treatment of Spina Bifida with Neurological Deficit, 168

Scoliosis, 170

Synostosis of the Cervical Spine (Klippel-Feil Syndrome), 170

Muscular Torticollis (Wry Neck), 171

Generalized Congenital Abnormalities, 172

Generalized Abnormalities of Bone, 172

Osteogenesis Imperfecta (Fragilitas Ossium; Brittle Bones), 172

Achondroplasia (Chondrodystrophia Fetalis), 173

Arachnodactyly (Hyperchondroplasia) (Marfan's Syndrome), 174

Enchondromatosis (Multiple Enchondromata) (Ollier's Dyschondroplasia), 175

Multiple Hereditary Exostoses (Diaphyseal Aclasis), 175

Generalized Abnormalities of Nerve and Muscle, 177

Neurofibromatosis (von Recklinghausen's Disease), 177

Hypotonia of Neuromuscular Origin (Amyotonia Congenita, Spinal Muscular

Atrophy), 178

Amyoplasia Congenita (Arthrogryposis Multiplex Congenita) (Myodystrophia

Fetalis), 178

9 Generalized and Disseminated Disorders of Bone, 183 Generalized Bone Disorders Caused by Metabolic Disturbances (Metabolic Bone Disease), 183

Rickets, 184

Pathology, 184

Diagnosis, 184

Osteomalacia, 187

Pathology, 187

Diagnosis, 187

Treatment, 188

Scurvy (Avitaminosis C), 188

Pathology, 189

Clinical Features, 189

Radiographic Features, 190

Differential Diagnosis, 190

Osteoporosis, 190

Etiological Factors, 191

Hormonal Osteoporosis (Endocrine Osteoporosis), 191

Disuse Osteoporosis, 191

Postmenopausal and Senile Osteoporosis, 191

Pathology, 192

```
Clinical Diagnosis, 193
     Radiographic Diagnosis, 193
     Laboratory Diagnosis, 193
     Treatment, 193
  Hyperparathyroidism (Parathyroid Osteodystrophy) (Osteitis Fibrosa
  Cystica), 194
     Etiology and Pathology, 195
     Diagnosis, 195
     Treatment, 196
  Hyperpituitarism, 196
     Gigantism, 196
     Acromegaly, 196
     Cushing's Syndrome, 197
  Hypopituitarism, 197
  Hypothyroidism in Childhood (Cretinism), 198
Disseminated Bone Disorders, 198
  Polyostotic Fibrous Dysplasia, 198
     Pathology, 198
     Diagnosis, 199
     Treatment, 199
  Paget's Disease (Osteitis Deformans), 199
     Etiology, 199
     Pathology, 199
     Diagnosis, 200
     Treatment, 201
  The Histiocytoses, 202
     Langerhans Cell Histiocytosis (Histiocytosis X), 202
     Gaucher's Disease—Lipid Histiocytosis, 205
Inflammatory Disorders of Bones and Joints, 207
The Inflammatory Process: General Features, 207
Reactions of the Musculoskeletal Tissues to Inflammation, 207
Types of Inflammatory Disorders of Bones and Joints, 208
  Pyogenic Bacterial Infections, 208
```

10

Principles of Antibacterial Therapy, 208

Acute Hematogenous Osteomyelitis, 209

Incidence, 209 Etiology, 209

Pathogenesis and Pathology, 209 Clinical Peatures and Diagnosis, 211

Treatment, 214 Prognosis, 214

Complications of Acute Hematogenous Osteomyelitis, 215

Chronic Hematogenous Osteomyelitis, 216

Incidence, 216

Pathogenesis and Pathology, 216

Clinical Features and Diagnosis, 217

Treatment, 217 Complications, 218

Acute Septic Arthritis (Pyogenic Arthritis), 218

Incidence, 218 Etiology, 218 Pathogenesis and Pathology, 218

Clinical Features and Diagnosis, 219

Septic Arthritis in Infants, 219

Septic Arthritis in Older Children and Adults, 219 Treatment, 220 Prognosis, 221 Complications of Acute Septic Arthritis, 221 Hematogenous Osteomyelitis of the Spine, 221 Clinical Features and Diagnosis, 222 Treatment and Prognosis, 223 Osteomyelitis and Septic Arthritis Secondary to Wounds, 223 Chronic Recurrent Multifocal Osteomyelitis, 224 Pyogenic Infections in the Hand, 224 Pyogenic Tenosynovitis, 224 Necrotizing Fasciitis, 226 Meningococcal Septicemia, 226 Viral Infections, 226 Human Immunodeficiency Virus and Acquired Immunodeficiency Syndrome, 226 Granulomatous Bacterial Infections, 226 Tuberculous Infections: General Features, 226 Establishment of Infection, 227 Principles of Antituberculous Therapy, 227 Tuberculous Osteomyelitis, 228 Tuberculous Osteomyelitis of the Spine (Tuberculous Spondylitis; Pott's Disease), 228 Tuberculous Arthritis, 230 Pathogenesis and Pathology, 230 Clinical Features and Diagnosis, 230 Treatment, 231 Nonspecific Inflammatory Disorders of Joints, 231 Classification of Rheumatic Diseases, 231 Prevalence of the Rheumatic Diseases, 232 Adult Rheumatoid Arthritis, 232 Incidence, 232 Etiology, 232 Pathogenesis and Pathology, 233 Clinical Features and Diagnosis, 234 Prognosis, 237 Treatment, 237 Aims of Treatment, 238 Methods of Treatment, 238 Diffuse Connective Tissue Diseases ("Collagen Diseases"), 240 Juvenile Rhelimatoid Arthritis (Juvenile Chronic Arthritis), 240 Ankylosing Spondylitis, 242 Incidence, 242 Etiology, 242 Pathogenesis and Pathology, 243 Clinical Features and Diagnosis, 243 Treatment, 244 Reiter's Syndrome, 245 Psoriasis, 245 Rheumatic Fever, 245 Etiology, 245 Pathology, 245 Clinical Features and Diagnosis, 245 Treatment, 246 Transient Synovitis of the Hip Joint in Children, 246

11

Gout and Gouty Arthritis, 247 Incidence, 247 Etiology, 247 Pathogenesis and Pathology, 248 Clinical Features, 248 Acute Gouty Arthritis, 248 Chronic Tophaceous Gout, 248 Chronic Gouty Arthritis, 249 Pseudogout, 250 Rheumatic Disease Unit, 250 Hemophilic Arthritis, 251 Incidence, 251 Pathogenesis and Pathology, 251 Clinical Features and Diagnosis, 251 Treatment, 252 Degenerative Disorders of Joints and Related Tissues, 257 Normal Aging of Articular Cartilage, 257 Degenerative Joint Disease (Osteoarthritis), 257 Incidence, 257 Etiology, 258 Primary Idiopathic Degenerative Joint Disease, 258 Secondary Degenerative Joint Disease, 258 Pathogenesis and Pathology in Synovial Joints, 258 Articular Cartilage, 258 Subchondral Bone, 260 Synovial Membrane and Fibrous Capsule, 261 Muscles, 262 Clinical Features and Diagnosis, 262 Prognosis, 263 Treatment, 264 Aims of Treatment, 264 Methods of Treatment, 264 Surgical Treatment of Degenerative Joint Disease in Specific Synovial Joints, 266 Foot and Ankle, 266 Knee, 266 Hip, 269 Hand and Wrist, 271 Elbow, 272 Shoulder, 272 Degenerative Joint Disease in the Spine, 272 Form and Function of the Spinal Joints, 272 Intervertebral Disc Joints, 273 Posterior Facet Joints, 273 Degenerative Joint Disease in the Lumbar Spine, 273 Etiology, 273 Pathogenesis and Pathology, 274 Disc Degeneration, 274 Segmental Instability, 274

Segmental Hyperextension, 275 Segmental Narrowing, 275

Spinal Stenosis, 276

Herniation of the Intervertebral Disc, 276

Clinical Features and Diagnosis of Various Syndromes in the Lumbar Spine, 276 Segmental Instability, 276 Segmental Hyperextension, 277 Segmental Narrowing, 277 Herniation of the Intervertebral Disc, 277

Spinal Stenosis, 279 Differential Diagnosis of Low Back Pain, 280

Treatment of Degenerative Joint Disease in the Lumbar Spine, 280

Aims of Treatment, 280 Methods of Treatment, 281

Degenerative Joint Disease in the Cervical Spine, 284

Pathogenesis and Pathology, 284 Clinical Features and Diagnosis, 285

Differential Diagnosis of Neck and Arm Pain, 285

Treatment of Degenerative Joint Disease in the Cervical Spine, 286

Neuropathic Joint Disease (Charcot's Joint), 287

Incidence and Etiology, 287 Pathogenesis and Pathology, 287 Clinical Features and Diagnosis, 287 Treatment, 288

Nonarticular Rheumatism, 288

Myofascial Pain Syndrome ("Fibrositis"), 288 Clinical Features, 289

Treatment, 289

Degenerative Tendon and Capsule Disease, 289

Incidence and Etiology, 289 Pathogenesis and Pathology, 290 Degenerative Tendon and Capsule Disease in the Shoulder, 290

12 Neuromuscular Disorders, 303

Clinical Manifestations of Neurological Disorders and Injuries, 303

Pathological Factors, 303

Clinical Manifestations of Lesions in Specific Systems of Neurons, 303

Upper Motor Neuron (Corticospinal) Lesions, 304

Extrapyramidal System Lesions, 304

Cerebellar Lesions, 304

Spinal Cord Lesions, 304

Lower Motor Neuron Lesions, 305

Diagnostic Imaging of the Nervous System, 305

Pathogenesis of Neurogenic Deformities of the Musculoskeletal System, 305 Principles of Orthopaedic Treatment of Neurological Disorders and Injuries, 306

Disorders of the Brain, 308

Cerebral Palsy, 308

Incidence, 308

Etiology, 308

Pathogenesis and Pathology, 308

Clinical Features and Diagnosis, 309

Prognosis, 311

Treatment of Cerebral Palsy, 312

Cerebral Palsy in the Adult, 315

Cerebrovascular Disease and Hemiplegia, 315

Disorders and Injuries of the Spinal Cord, 316

Congenital Myelodysplasia, 316

13

| Diastematomyelia, 316 |
|---|
| Syringomyelia, 316 |
| Poliomyelitis, 317 |
| Incidence and Etiology, 317 |
| Prevention, 318 |
| Pathogenesis and Pathology, 318 |
| Clinical Features and Diagnosis, 318 |
| Treatment, 318 |
| Postpolio Syndrome, 320 |
| Spinocerebellar Degenerations, 321 |
| Friedreich's Ataxia, 321 |
| Spinal Paraplegia and Quadriplegia, 321 |
| Incidence and Etiology, 322 |
| Clinical Features, 322 |
| Disorders and Injuries of the Spinal Nerve Roots and Peripheral Nerves, 324 |
| Polyneuropathy, 324 |
| Hereditary Motor and Sensory Neuropathies, 324 |
| Acute Inflammatory Demyelinating Polyneuropathy (Guillain-Barré |
| Syndrome), 325 |
| Other Forms of Polyneuropathy, 325 |
| Compression of Spinal Nerve Roots, 325 |
| Peripheral Nerve Entrapment Syndromes, 326 |
| Median Nerve at the Wrist (Carpal Tunnel Syndrome), 326 |
| Ulnar Nerve at the Elbow (Delayed or Tardy Ulnar Palsy), 326 |
| Radial Nerve at the Axilla (Crutch Palsy), 327 |
| Brachial Plexus at the Thoracic Outlet (Scalenus Syndrome), 327 |
| Digital Nerves in the Foot (Morton's Neuroma and Metatarsalgia), 327 |
| Acute Injuries to Nerve Roots and Peripheral Nerves, 328 |
| Classification of Nerve Injuries, 328 |
| Clinical Features and Diagnosis, 328 |
| Prognosis and Recovery, 329 |
| Treatment of Acute Nerve Injuries, 329 |
| Traction Injuries of the Brachial Plexus, 329 |
| Birth Injuries of the Brachial Plexus (Obstetrical Paralysis), 329 |
| Brachial Plexus Injuries Resulting from Accidents, 331 |
| Acute Injuries to Specific Peripheral Nerves, 332 |
| Disorders of Muscle, 332 |
| Muscular Dystrophies, 332 |
| Types of Muscular Dystrophies, 332 |
| * Treatment of Muscular Dystrophy, 334 |
| E Treatment of Muscular Dystrophy, 334 |
| Disordors of Epiphyses and Enit 1 1 0 11 and |
| Disorders of Epiphyses and Epiphyseal Growth, 339 |
| Nutrition of the Epiphysis and its Epiphyseal Plate, 339 |
| Avascular Necrosis of Bone, 339 |
| diopathic Avascular Necrosis of Epiphyses (The Osteochondroses), 340 |
| General Features of the Osteochondroses, 341 |
| Incidence and Etiology, 341 |
| Pathogenesis and Pathology, 341 |
| Clinical Features and Diagnosis, 344 |
| Sequelae, 344 |
| Aims and Principles of Treatment, 345 |
| Specific Osteochondroses of Secondary Centers of Ossification (Pressure |
| Epiphyses), 345 |
| Osteochondrosis of the Femoral Head (Legg-Perthes' Disease), 345 |
| Incidence and Etiology, 345 |

Pathogenesis and Pathology, 346 Clinical Features and Diagnosis, 346 Complications, 346 Prognosis, 347

Osteochondrosis of the Capitellum (Panner's Disease), 350
Osteochondrosis of a Metatarsal Head (Freiberg's Disease), 350
Osteochondrosis of Secondary Centers of Ossification in the Spine (Scheuermann's Disease), 351

Incidence and Etiology, 351
Pathogenesis and Pathology, 352

Clinical Features and Diagnosis, 352

Specific Osteochondroses of Primary Centers of Ossification, 353

Osteochondrosis of the Tarsal Navicular (Kohler's Disease), 353 Osteochondrosis of the Lunate (Kienböck's Disease), 353 Osteochondrosis of a Primary Center of Ossification in the Spine (Calvé's Disease), 354

Tangential Avascular Necrosis of a Pressure Epiphysis (Osteochondritis Dissecans), 355

Incidence and Etiology, 355
Pathogenesis and Pathology, 355
Clinical Features and Diagnosis, 355
Prognosis, 356
Treatment, 356

Nontraumatic Osteonecrosis of the Femoral Head in Adults, 357 Nontraumatic Osteonecrosis of the Knee in Adults, 358

Posttraumatic Avascular Necrosis of Traction Epiphyses (Apophyses), 358
Partial Avulsion of the Tibial Tubercle (Osgood-Schlatter's Disease), 358
Partial Avulsion of the Calcaneal Apophysis (Sever's Disease), 359

Posttraumatic Avascular Necrosis of Subchondral Bone, 359
Miscellaneous Causes of Avascular Necrosis of Subchondral Bone, 360
Disorders of Epiphyseal Growth, 361

Slipped Upper Femoral Epiphysis (Adolescent Coxa Vara), 361

Incidence and Etiology, 361 Pathogenesis and Pathology, 362 Clinical Features and Diagnosis, 362 Treatment, 363

Tibia Vara (Blount's Disease), 364 Madelung's Deformity, 365

Scoliosis, 365

Etiological Classification of Scoliosis, 366 Idiopathic Scoliosis, 368

Spondylolysis, 372

Incidence and Etiology, 373 Clinical Features and Treatment, 373

Complication, 373 Spondylolisthesis, 373

Incidence and Etiology, 373 Clinical Features and Diagnosis, 374 Treatment, 375 Complications, 375

14 Neoplasms of Musculoskeletal Tissues, 379

Neoplasm-Like Lesions and True Neoplasms of Bone, 379 Definition of Terms, 379

```
Classifications, 379
General Considerations, 380
  Incidence, 380
  Diagnosis, 381
     Clinical Features, 381
     Diagnostic Imaging and Correlation with Pathology, 381
     Laboratory Investigations, 388
     Staging of Benign, Potentially Malignant, and Malignant Neoplasms of
     Bone, 389
     Biopsy, 389
  Principles and Methods of Treatment, 390
     Principles, 390
     Methods of Treatment, 391
Specific Neoplasm-Like Lesions of Bone, 392
  Osteoma (Ivory Exostosis), 392
  Single Osteochondroma (Osteocartilaginous Exostosis), 392
  Multiple Osteochondromata (Multiple Hereditary Exostoses) (Diaphyseal
  Aclasis), 393
  Osteoid Osteoma, 393
  Osteoblastoma (Giant Osteoid Osteoma), 395
  Single Enchondroma, 395
  Multiple Enchondromata (Ollier's Dyschondroplasia), 395
  Subperiosteal Cortical Defect (Metaphyseal Fibrous Defect), 396
  Nonosteogenic Fibroma (Nonossifying Fibroma), 396
  Monostotic Fibrous Dysplasia, 396
  Polyostotic Fibrous Dysplasia, 397
  Osteofibrous Dysplasia (Campanacci Syndrome), 397
  "Brown Tumor" (Hyperparathyroidism), 397
  Angioma of Bone, 397
  Aneurysmal Bone Cyst, 398
  Simple Bone Cyst (Solitary Bone Cyst; Unicameral Bone Cyst), 398
Specific True Neoplasms of Bone, 400
  Osteosarcoma (Osteogenic Sarcoma), 400
  Surface Osteosarcoma, 402
     Parosteal Osteosarcoma, 402
     Periosteal Osteosarcoma, 403
  Benign Chondroblastoma, 403
  Chondromyxoid Fibroma, 403
  Chondrosarcoma, 404
  Fibrosarcoma, 404
  Malignant Fibrous Histiocytoma, 404
  Myeloma (Multiple Myeloma), 404
  Ewing's Tumor (Ewing's Sarcoma), 405
  Hodgkin's Lymphoma, 407
  Non-Hodgkin's Lymphoma (Reticulum Cell Sarcoma), 407
  Skeletal Reticuloses (Langerhans' Cell Histiocytosis), 407
  Leukemia, 408
   Giant Cell Tumor of Bone (Osteoclastoma), 408
Metastatic (Secondary) Neoplasms in Bone, 409
  Metastatic Carcinoma, 409
   Metastatic Neuroblastoma, 411
Neoplasm-Like Lesions and True Neoplasms of Soft Tissues, 411
Classifications, 411
Specific Neoplasm-Like and Benign Neoplasms of Soft Tissues, 412
   Lipoma, 412
```

Fibroma, 412

Aggressive Fibromatosis, 412

Neuroma, 412

Neurilemmoma (Benign Schwannoma), 412

Neurofibroma, 412

Hemangioma, 412

Glomus Tumor, 412

Synovial Chondrometaplasia (Synovial Chondromatosis), 412

Pigmented Villonodular Synovitis, 413

Giant Cell Tumor of Tendon Sheath, 413

Specific Malignant Neoplasms of Soft Tissues, 413

Rhabdomyosarcoma, 414

Liposarcoma, 414

Fibrosarcoma and Malignant Fibrous Histiocytoma, 414

Neurosarcoma, 414

Synovial Sarcoma (Synovioma), 414

Epithelioid Sarcoma, 414

Section III Musculoskeletal Injuries

15 Fractures and Joint Injuries--General Features, 417

General Incidence and Significance, 417

Fractures and Associated Injuries, 418

Physical Factors in the Production of Fractures, 418

Descriptive Terms Pertaining to Fractures, 419

Associated Injury to the Periosteum, 422

Diagnosis of Fractures and Associated Injuries, 423

Patient's History, 423

Physical Examination, 424

Diagnostic Imaging, 425

Normal Healing of Fractures, 425

Healing of a Fracture in Cortical Bone (Diaphyseal Bone; Tubular Bone), 427

Initial Effects of the Fracture, 427

Early Stages of Healing from Soft Tissues, 427

Stage of Clinical Union, 428

Stage of Consolidation (Radiographic Union), 428

Healing of a Fracture in Cortical Bone with Rigid Internal Fixation, 428

Healing of a Fracture in Cancellous Bone (Metaphyseal Bone and Cuboidal

Bones), 430

Healing of a Fracture in Articular Cartilage, 431

Healing of a Fracture Involving the Epiphyseal Plate (The Physis), 433

Time Required for Uncomplicated Fracture Healing, 433

Age of the Patient, 433

Site and Configuration of the Fracture, 433

Initial Displacement of the Fracture, 433

Blood Supply to the Fragments, 433

Assessment of Fracture Healing in Patients, 434

Abnormal Healing of Fractures, 434

Complications of Fractures, 434

Classification of the Complications of the Original Injury, 435

General Principles of Fracture Treatment, 436

- 1. First, Do No Harm, 436
- Base Treatment on an Accurate Diagnosis and Prognosis, 436
- 3. Select Treatment with Specific Aims, 437.

- 4. Cooperate with the "Laws of Nature", 437
- Make Treatment Realistic and Practical, 437
- Select Treatment for Your Patient as an Individual. 438

Emergency Life Support Systems, 438

Preliminary Care For Patients with Fractures, 438

Immediate Care Outside a Hospital (First Aid), 439

Transportation, 441

Emergency Care in a Hospital, 441

Responsibilities for the Care of the Critically Injured, 444

Fractures and Dislocations, 444

Specific Methods of Definitive Fracture Treatment, 445

Specific Methods of Treatment for Closed Fractures, 446

Treatment for Open Fractures, 460

Anesthesia for Patients with Fractures, 462

After-Care and Rehabilitation for Patients with Fractures, 463

Complications of Fracture Treatment, 464

Classification of Complications of Fracture Treatment, 464

Recognition and Treatment of Complications, from Both the Initial Injury and Its Treatment, 464

Initial and Early Complications, 465

Late Complications, 476

Special Types of Fractures, 485

Stress Fractures (Fatigue Fractures), 485

Pathological Fractures, 486

Classification of Disorders That Predispose Bone to Pathological Fracture, 486

Clinical Features and Diagnosis, 487

Prognosis of Pathological Fractures, 487

Dislocations and Associated Injuries, 488

Normal Joint Stability, 488

Physical Factors in the Production of Joint Injuries, 489

Descriptive Terms Pertaining to Joint Injuries, 489

Associated Injury to the Fibrous Capsule, 490

Diagnosis of Joint Injuries, 491

Normal Healing of Ligaments, 492

Complications of Dislocations and Associated Injuries, 492

General Principles of Treatment for Joint Injuries, 492

Specific Types of Joint Injuries, 492

Contusion, 492

Ligamentous Sprain, 492

Dislocations and Subluxations, 493

Muscle Injuries, 493

Tendon Injuries, 494

Closed Tendon Injuries, 494

Open Tendon Injuries, 494

16 Specific Fractures and Joint Injuries in Children, 499 Special Features of Fractures and Dislocations in Children, 499

- Fractures More Common, 499
- 2. Stronger and More Active Periosteum, 499
- More Rapid Fracture Healing, 499
- Special Problems of Diagnosis, 500
- Spontaneous Correction of Certain Residual Deformities, 500 Angulation, 501

Incomplete Apposition, 502

Shortening, 502

Rotation, 502

- 6. Differences in Complications, 502
- 7. Different Emphasis on Methods of Treatment, 503
- 8. Torn Ligaments and Dislocations Less Common, 503
- 9. Less Tolerance of Major Blood Loss, 503

Special Types of Fractures in Children, 504

Fractures That Involve the Epiphyseal Plate (Physis), 504

Anatomy, Histology, and Physiology, 504

Diagnosis of Epiphyseal Plate Injuries, 505

Salter-Harris Classification of Epiphyseal Plate Injuries, 505

Healing of Epiphyseal Plate Injuries, 508

Prognosis Concerning Growth Disturbance, 508

Possible Effects of Growth Disturbance, 508

Special Considerations in the Treatment of Epiphyseal Plate Injuries, 510

Avulsion of Traction Epiphyses, 510

Birth Fractures, 511

Specific Birth Fractures, 511

Specific Fractures and Dislocations, 512

The Hand, 512

The Wrist and Forearm, 513

Distal Radial Epiphysis, 514

Distal Third of Radius and Ulna, 514

Middle Third of Radius and Ulna, 516

Proximal Third of Radius and Ulna, 517

The Elbow and Arm, 518

Pulled Elbow, 520

Proximal Radial Epiphysis, 521

Dislocation of the Elbow, 522

Medial Epicondyle, 523

Lateral Condyle, 523

Supracondylar Fracture of the Humerus, 526

Shaft of the Humerus, 531

The Shoulder, 531

Proximal Humeral Epiphysis, 531

Clavicle, 532

The Spine, 533

Cervical Spine, 535

Thoracic Spine, 536

Lumbar Spine, 537

The Foot, 537

Fractures of the Metatarsals, 537

The Ankle and Leg, 538

Type I Injury of the Distal Fibular Epiphysis, 539

Type II Injury of the Distal Tibial Epiphysis, 539

Type III Injury of the Distal Tibial Epiphysis, 539

Type IV Injury of the Distal Tibial Epiphysis, 539

Type V Injury of the Distal Tibial Epiphysis, 540

Fracture of the Tibia, 540

The Knee and Thigh, 542

Avulsion Fracture of the Anterior Tibial Spine, 542

Type II Injury of the Proximal Tibial Epiphysis, 543

Type II Injury of the Distal Femoral Epiphysis, 543

Type IV Injury of the Distal Femoral Epiphysis, 543

Traumatic Dislocation of the Patella, 543

Internal Derangements of the Knee, 545

Fractures of the Femoral Shaft, 545

Fractures of the Subtrochanteric Region of the Femur, 549

The Hip and Pelvis, 549

Fractures of the Femoral Neck, 549

Type I Injury of the Proximal Femoral Epiphysis, 551

Traumatic Dislocation of the Hip, 551

Pelvis, 555

Stable Fractures of the Pelvis, 555 Unstable Fractures of the Pelvis, 555

Child Abuse, 556

Diagnosis, 556

Treatment, 558

Specific Fractures and Joint Injuries in Adults, 561 17

Special Features of Fractures and Dislocations in Adults, 561

- Fractures Less Common But More Serious, 561
- Weaker and Less Active Periosteum, 561
- Less Rapid Fracture Healing, 561
- 4. Fewer Problems of Diagnosis, 562
- No Spontaneous Correction of Residual Fracture Deformities, 562
- Differences in Complications, 562
- Different Emphasis on Methods of Treatment, 562
- 8. Torn Ligaments and Dislocations More Common, 563
- Better Tolerance of Major Blood Loss, 563

Specific Fractures and Dislocations, 563

The Hand, 563

General Features, 563

Phalanges, 563

Sprains and Dislocations of the Interphalangeal Joints, 565

Dislocation of the Metacarpophalangeal Joints, 565

Metacarpals, 566

Fracture-Dislocation of the First Carpometacarpal Joint (Bennett's

Fracture), 567

Fractures of the Scaphoid, 567

Dislocation of the Lunate, 570

The Wrist and Forearm, 570

Distal End of the Radius (Colles' Fracture), 570

Smith's Fracture of the Distal End of the Radius, 573

Fractures of the Shafts of the Radius and Ulna, 574

The Elbow and Arm, 579

Fracture of the Olecranon, 579

Fractures of the Radial Head, 581

Posterior Dislocation of the Elbow, 582

Fracture-Dislocations of the Elbow, 584

Intercondylar Fractures of the Humerus, 584

Fractures of the Shaft of the Humerus, 584

Fractures of the Neck of the Humerus, 588

Fractures of the Greater Tuberosity of the Humerus, 589

The Shoulder, 589

Dislocations of the Shoulder, 589

Rupture of the Musculotendinous Cuff of the Shoulder, 593

Subluxation and Dislocation of the Acromioclavicular Joint, 593

Dislocation of the Sternoclavicular Joint, 594

Fractures of the Clavicle, 594

The Spine, 595

General Features, 595

Injuries of the Cervical Spine, 596

Injuries of the Thoracic and Lumbar Spine, 602

Thorax, 605

Fractures of the Ribs, 605

The Foot, 605

Fractures of the Metatarsals, 605

Lisfranc's Fracture-Dislocations of the Tarsometatarsal Joints, 605

Fractures of the Os Calcis (Calcaneum), 606

Fractures of the Neck of the Talus, 608

The Ankle, 609

Sprains of the Lateral Ligament, 609

Tears of the Lateral Ligament, 610

Total Rupture of the Achilles Tendon, 610

Fractures and Fracture-Dislocations of the Ankle, 611

The Leg, 616

Fractures of the Shafts of the Tibia and Fibula, 616

The Knee, 620

Fractures of the Proximal End of the Tibia (Tibial Plateau Fractures), 620

Injuries of the Semilunar Cartilages (Menisci), 622

Ligamentous Injuries of the Knee, 625

Traumatic Dislocation of the Knee, 627

Fractures of the Patella, 628

Intercondylar Fractures of the Femur, 629

The Thigh, 630

Fractures of the Femoral Shaft, 630

The Hip, 632

Intertrochanteric Fractures of the Femur, 632

Fractures of the Femoral Neck, 634

Traumatic Dislocations and Fracture-Dislocations of the Hip, 638

The Pelvis, 642

Fractures of the Pelvis, 642

Treatment of Pelvic Fractures, 643

The Care of Athletes, 647

The Etiology of Athletic Injuries and Their Prevention, 648

Terminology of Athletic Injuries, 649

The Athlete's Response to Injury, 650

Aims of Treatment of Athletic Injuries, 650

Medical Aspects of Athletic Conditioning and Training, 650

The Care of the Elderly and their Fractures, 651

The Response of the Elderly to Injury, 651

Aims of Treatment for the Elderly, 651

The Treatment of Fractures in the Elderly, 652

The Prevention of Fractures in the Elderly, 652

Section IV Research

18 The Philosophy and Nature of Medical Research with One Example, 657

A Definition of Research, 657

The Various Types of Research, 658

The Image of Medical Research, 658

The Goals and Importance of Research, 658

The Motivation for Search and Research, 659

Personal Qualities of the Medical Scientist, 659

The Philosophy of Medical Research, 659

The Nature of Medical Research—A Cycle, 660

- 1. Recognize an Unsolved Clinical Problem, 660
 - 2. Think, 660

xxxiv Contents

- 3. Review the Scientific Literature, 660
- 4. Ask an Intelligent Question, 662
- 5. Formulate a Hypothesis, 662
- 6. Plan the Research Protocol, 662
- 7. Seek Collaboration, 662
- 8. Apply for Funding, 662
- 9. Conduct the Investigation, 663
- 10. Collect and Analyze the Data, 663
- 11. Interpret the Data, 663
- 12. Draw Valid Conclusions, 663
- 13. Answer the Original Question, 663
- 14. Present Results at a Meeting, 664
- 15. Publish a Scientific Paper, 664
- 16. Apply the New Knowledge, 664

One Example of Medical Research, 664

An Overview of Continuous Passive Motion (CPM), 664

Index, 673